
Peninsula Airport Commission 
Board of Commissioners 

Meeting Packet 
Lindsey Carney Smith, Chair 

Michael Giardino, C.M., Executive Director 
 
 

Thursday, August 25, 2022 

8:00 a.m. 

Commission Room 
900 Bland Blvd 

Newport News, VA 23602 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDAS 



220825 
   

1  

PENINSULA AIRPORT COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Date: August 25, 2022 
Time: 8:00 a.m. 

Location: Commission Room 
 
1) Call to Order 

 
2) Jared Alexander Award presentations (employee recognition) 

 
3) Approval of Minutes from June 23, 2022 

 
4) Read Instructions for Public Comment 

 
5) Public Comment 

 
6) Avelo Update 

 
7) Staff Reports 

a) Waterworks 
b) Huntington Pointe 
c) Habersham 
d) Director’s Report 

 
8) Old Business 

 
9) New Business 

a) Resolutions 
b) Real Property Acquisitions and Authorizations 
c) Existing Facilities Lease Authorization 

 
10) Read instructions for closed session 

 
11) Closed Session 

a) Discussion of real property acquisition  
b) Discussion concerning prospective businesses 
c) Consultation with legal counsel 
 
2.2-3711. A. 3. Discussion or consideration of real property for a public purpose, or of the 
disposition of publicly held real property, where discussion in an open meeting would 
adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of the public body; 
subsection A.5 discussion concerning a prospective business or industry or the 
expansion of an existing business or industry where no previous announcement has 
been made of the business’ or industry’s interest in locating or expanding its facilities in 
the community; and subsection A7 Consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff 
members or consultants pertaining to actual or probable litigation, where such 



220825 
   

2  

consultation or briefing in open meeting would adversely affect the negotiating or litigating 
posture of the public body; and consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by a 
public body regarding specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by 
such counsel. For the purposes of this subdivision, “probable litigation” means litigation 
that has been specifically threatened or on which the public body or its legal counsel has 
a reasonable basis to believe will be commenced by or against a known party. Nothing in 
this subdivision shall be construed to permit the closure of a meeting merely because an 
attorney representing the public body is in attendance or is consulted on a matter.  

 
12) Open Session 

 
13) Adjourn 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 



 
 

 220623 PAC Minutes  
 

Peninsula Airport Commission 
Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes 

June 23, 2022, 8:00 a.m. 
 
Commissioners in Attendance:  
Chair, James “Jay” Joseph 
Secretary, Lindsey Smith 
Assistant Treasurer, Sharon Scott (arrived 8:03 a.m.) 
Assistant Secretary, Brian Kelly 
Commissioner, Jennifer Smith (arrived 8:02 a.m.) 
 
Staff Members in Attendance:  
Executive Director, Michael Giardino 
Deputy Director, John Borden 
Business Development Manager, Chris Walton 
Executive Assistant, Jamie O’Brien 
Counsel, L. Scott Seymour 
Facilities Manager, Bill LaManque 
Airport One, Steve Romme 
  
Public Officials Present: 
Ralph “Bo” Clayton, Newport News Assistant City Manager 
 
Public Attendees:  
David Hause, Kiln Creek HOA 
Peter Dujardin, Daily Press 
 
Chairman Joseph called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. and noted that this meeting is also the 
Annual Meeting. 

Minutes. Commissioner Kelly moved to accept the April 28, 2022; meeting minutes as presented. 
Commissioner Scott seconded and the minutes were approved unanimously. 
 
Public Comment. None 
 
Committee reports: Three of the committees, Governance, Finance and Audit, and Marketing and 
Public Relations did not meet. Planning and Development did meet. As we begin a new fiscal year, 
Commissioner Joseph recommends we take a look at committee structure and assignments. We are 
not limited to two members on a committee so going forward, we may want to consider increasing the 
size of the committees. We could have fewer committees that are larger.  
 
At 8:02 a.m., Commissioner Jennifer Smith joined the meeting.  
At 8:03 a.m., Commissioner Sharon Scott joined the meeting. 
 
Planning and Development committee report: 



 
 

 220623 PAC Minutes  
 

• In April 2022, there was discussion about monitoring our leases. Staff is in the process of 
switching to a new software called “Aero Simple” which will track and monitor leases. We hope 
to have all the leases loaded into the software by the end of the Summer. Aero Simple will 
become the reporting tool that can report vacancies, delinquencies, etc., upon request. 

• Aery financing has now closed as of June 22, 2022. We have a letter from their lender 
confirming all conditions for funding have been met. Construction is expected to be complete 
sometime in the Fall. 

• Land release for the McMurran parcel is done. It should be scheduled to close in the next 
couple of weeks. Per Scott Seymour, the deeds have been exchanged and all the documents 
are being finalized. 

• The Habersham land release is still pending with the FAA. 
• The Dog Head parcel is expected to close at the end of August. York and the PAC have revised 

the plat. It is with the county of York now and once the revisions are approved; we will settle the 
closing for August as scheduled. 

• Mr. Giardino has been updating the Board of Commissioners each week with a “Situation 
Report” on the mobile home park, and how many trailers are resolved each week. 

• We continue to work toward a common vision with the Master Planner for executing the Master 
Plan Agreement. We went through an RFP process to identify a Master Planner; the other 
bidders have been notified. Before executing the agreement, we need to make sure we have a 
common vision of where we are headed with that process. Once we determine the common 
vision, it will be brought back to the full Commission. 

• We will have some closed business sessions about proposed real estate transactions. 
 
Staff Reports: Mr. Giardino stated the presentation of the Aero Simple demonstration shown to the 
Planning and Development committee will be shown to the full Commission in late Summer or early 
Fall.  
 
We have three resolutions. 

1. Budget – presented to the Board in April 2022. There has been a 30-40% reduction in seats this 
year. Fuel prices and a pilot shortage are affecting regional service the most. Mr. Giardino 
proposes a mid-year review of the budget. 

Commissioner Kelly made motion to accept the budget. Commissioner Scott seconded the motion. 
Voice vote by roll call: Mr. Joseph – Yes, Ms. L. Smith – Yes, Mr. Kelly – Yes, Ms. Scott – Yes, Ms. 
J. Smith – Abstained. Motion passed. 
 
2. Rubber removal and repainting – Per the FAA part 139 inspection, the rubber from planes 

landing needs to be scrubbed from the airfield and markings need to be repainted. The cost for 
this project is 80% funded by the Commonwealth, 20% funded by Virginia Aviation Board. 

Motion was made by Commissioner Kelly and seconded by Commissioner Scott. Voice vote by roll 
call: Mr. Joseph – Yes, Ms. L. Smith – Yes, Mr. Kelly – Yes, Ms. Scott – Yes, Ms. J. Smith – Yes. 
Motion passed. 
 
3. Right of First Refusal for 12660 McManus Blvd. property. Recommendation by Mr. Giardino is to 

waive our right of first refusal on the property. Commissioner L. Smith asked for a point of 
clarification; based on the executive summary, we are only waiving our right for this specific 
transaction. PAC right of first refusal continues for 40 years from 1985. This is confirmed by 
legal counsel Scott Seymour. Chairman Joseph accepted a motion to waive our right of first 



 
 

 220623 PAC Minutes  
 

refusal for this transaction. Commissioner L. Smith made the motion, Commissioner Scott 
seconded the motion. Voice vote by roll call: Mr. Joseph – Yes, Ms. L. Smith – Yes, Mr. Kelly – 
Yes, Ms. Scott – Yes, Ms. J. Smith – Abstain. Motion passed. 

 
Chairman Joseph asked Mr. Giardino about the Master Agreement. Mr. Giardino responded that we 
enter into an agreement with the Commonwealth for use of Commonwealth funding. There has been a 
revision to the Master Agreement and it is non-negotiable. If PAC wishes to accept the funds, we must 
adopt the Master Agreement as written. Chairman Joseph asked what the change was and if PAC 
needs to act on it today. Mr. Giardino responded that we do need to act on it today. Per counsel Scott 
Seymour, PAC has until July to execute it. Chairman Joseph asked Mr. Seymour to walk the PAC 
through what the Master Agreement does. Following is Mr. Seymour’s explanation: 
 “The Master Agreement is essentially the general terms and conditions on the acceptance of 
any Department of Aviation grant funds. It requires the airport to maintain compliance with both FAA 
Part 139 as well as the State rules related to airports, so we have to maintain, we cannot get release of 
land without going to the Department of Aviation. We have to comply with all federal FAA rules. We 
have to maintain easements on our land so that the airport can remain open for public use. There is 
nothing in it that we would find objectionable from a legal standpoint. To the extent that we do not 
comply with the terms of the grant agreement and our general grant assurances, we are subject to 
having to repay the money back to the Department of Aviation. Similar terms apply with all of our 
federal programs. All airports that receive State funds are required to sign this Master Agreement.” 
 
Chairman Joseph called for questions. He asked if we have a resolution we can recommend. Mr. 
Seymour says a resolution is required.  
 
Resolution: We resolve that the Peninsula Airport Commission approve and adopt the 2022 
Master Agreement on Terms and Conditions for Accepting State Aviation Funding, and to 
authorize Michael Giardino to sign the agreement. 

A motion was made by Commissioner Kelly to accept the resolution. The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner L. Smith. Voice vote by roll call: Mr. Joseph – Yes, Ms. L. Smith – Yes, Mr. Kelly – Yes, 
Ms. Scott – Yes, Ms. J. Smith – Yes. Motion passed. 

Mr. Giardino told the commissioners that he is happy to provide updates to any of them whenever they 
would like.  

Marketing update: Provided by Steve Romme of Airport One (see exhibit one). We have been pretty 
specific on branding and vision for the organization. Our promise is we get there faster and easier and 
it’s relaxing so people can enjoy the trip. We want our airport to kind of “disappear in the experience.” 
We are local, comfortable but sophisticated enough to handle business travel. Our advertising plays up 
these aspects as part of our brand. 

Growth approach is to fill seats. Our goal is 85% fill rate. Mr. Giardino noted that our airport does not 
currently have an ultra-low cost carrier which results in “leakage” to Norfolk and Richmond. 

Yield = airline profitability. Not only do we fill the seats, but the seats we have are yielding more for the 
airline. Our airport tends to run above average for the yield. Commissioner Joseph questioned the 
graph regarding yield. Mr. Romme explained it was $.25 per seat mile.  

2021 was the launch of the new brand. 2022 we have implemented planning and development tools 
that will help from an advertising development standpoint. We assessed and optimized resources. 



 
 

 220623 PAC Minutes  
 

We’ve reduced spending while maintaining load factor. The three things we’re doing to modify that is: 
1. Modifying the digital advertising tactics. In the coming months we will broaden the mix. We’ve been 
very digital focused.  

2. More billboard and radio activity in the coming months to get a broader message out there.  

3. Improve our organic social media presence. 

We have a great analytics tool now. We are ready to launch new airlines as soon as we get them. Per 
Mr. Romme, typically when a new airline launches, they give you three week’s notice to launch. You 
can’t implement a marketing plan in three weeks. Airports must fill flights when launching new airlines 
and must market well in order to fill the flights. We need to be and are ready. 

Analytically, this is overall a leisure campaign. We track how much it costs to get a click into the 
booking engine. For us, it isn’t a win until the passenger is clicked through to the booking page for the 
airline. Our click costs are higher because we measure by how many passengers get to the booking 
engine, not just clicking on ads. The average cost for our click cost was in the high $2s to about $1.50 
so we have become dramatically more efficient. We continue to analyze every month. 

Programmatic costs are more expensive but requires marketing too. Many people aren’t on social 
media and we need to reach them. 

Commissioner J. Smith asked what happened in April. Mr. Romme explained it was between 
campaigns. 

Commissioner Scott asked what impact is of the cost of our flights being so much more than Norfolk 
and Richmond. She stated it could be as much as $300-$400 more to fly from PHF than to fly from 
Norfolk or Richmond. Mr. Romme responded that on average, our flights are within 10% of our 
competitor’s costs consistently every quarter. The reason for the higher prices is if the flight is highly 
booked (popular), the price will be higher. It’s supply and demand. As the airlines fill seats, they raise 
the price.  

Commissioner Kelly said it’s a catch-22. We need to fill seats to get seats. If we fill the seats, the prices 
start to go up, but no airline is going to add back flights or come to PHF is we don’t show that we can 
fill seats. 

Mr. Romme said part of our strategy is to make sure we’re looking at advertising routes in which we 
can win. As an example, a route to Atlanta we wouldn’t spend many advertising dollars because the 
other airports have ultra-low cost carriers that regularly serve that airport. We need to spend our 
marketing dollars on airports where the playing field is even – airports we (ORF, RIC, PHF) fly through. 
We spend on the destinations we know we can win. 

Commissioner Joseph asks how we target specific audiences. How does the algorithm identify our 
audience? Are we able to identify that narrow of an audience? Per Mr. Romme, we can geo-fence and 
other geo-targeting.  

Commissioner Scott expressed interest in targeting data to justify a Philadelphia flight. Mr. Romme 
stated we already have that data down to zip code and where those passengers are traveling. When 
PHF had the Philadelphia flight, we could not consistently fill that flight. It wasn’t convenient. Mr. 
Giardino stated that losing the Philadelphia flight wasn’t related to PHF, but rather the airlines dropping 
capacity all over the country. Richmond and Norfolk proportionally are losing the same amount of 
service as PHF. It’s a nationwide issue. 



 
 

 220623 PAC Minutes  
 

Announcement by Commissioner Joseph that we will now enter into the Annual Meeting portion of the 
meeting and hold election of new officers.  

Commissioner L. Smith spoke to each commissioner and has a suggested slate of officers as follows: 

Chair: Lindsey Smith 

Vice Chair: Brian Kelly 

Treasurer: Jay Joseph 

Asst. Treasurer: Jennifer Smith 

Secretary: Sharon Scott 

Asst. Secretary: will remain vacant until a new commissioner is sworn in 

Commissioner Joseph called for any discussion or nominations from the floor. There being none, he 
will accept the slate as a motion. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Scott. Voice vote by roll 
call: Mr. Joseph – Yes, Ms. L. Smith – Yes, Mr. Kelly – Yes, Ms. Scott – Yes, Ms. J. Smith – Yes. 
Motion passed. Officers will take their seats on July 1, 2022. 

Commissioner Joseph asked if there was any other business for the Annual Meeting portion. Mr. 
Giardino stated that Hertz is back in house and they brought the Dollar brand with them. We used to 
have five brands, now we have six. 

Mr. Giardino presented a model of Air Force One to outgoing Chair, Jay Joseph. Plaques will be 
delivered to our outgoing commissioners as well.  

Commissioner Joseph asked if there was anything else for open session. Commissioner Scott stated, 
“Since the trailer park situation has become a Newport News issue in addition to a PAC issue, I just 
want to know if there are any updates on how we are dealing with the situation. Whether there has 
been any movement, who’s engaged and what’s the status of our tenants at the trailer park.”  

Commissioner Joseph asked Commissioner Scott if she had seen Mr. Giardino’s email from yesterday 
with the latest status report. Commissioner Scott said the last email she saw, “the numbers hadn’t 
changed much so I just want to know how we’re dealing with the situation. November will be here 
before you know it and we need to know what’s going to happen and there’s still a conversation out 
there about the decreasing $2000 to $1000 to less so we do need to have that conversation.” 

Commissioner Joseph responded “The staff… there’s an old saying, I think John Wooden said it, 
‘Character is what you do when nobody is looking’ so before any of this attention, staff came up with a 
very compassionate plan in my opinion, to assist these residents. So, there’s a free rent component, 
right? And the cash component was for anybody that wanted to move out early, but if you stay, you’re 
getting equivalent value from free rent. So that free rent is worth if they stay the six months, roughly 
$2800. And that’s not anything a private landlord would do. The second thing we’ve done is that, you 
know, these units are, they belong to the residents of course, and they have three choices I think we’ve 
identified. They can move the unit to another park. Some I understand have – we don’t know how 
many, but Bill tells us that some have done or are doing that. There are some businesses out there 
that buy these units and renovate and move them. To our knowledge no one has taken any offers on 
that. But the third option is if the unit is obsolete or fragile, at the end of its useful life, it has no value 
and cannot be moved, the resident, under the lease is responsible for the removal of that trailer. It’s 



 
 

 220623 PAC Minutes  
 

costing us about $4400 per unit when we remove those trailers in bulk. So, we have a contractor who 
comes on site and they demolish four, six, eight at a time. We believe that if a resident had to arrange 
themselves, and remember they are responsible in the lease to remove the trailer, it would cost them 
as a one-off situation, they would have to bring the contractor on site, you know, $5,000 or more. We 
don’t know because we haven’t bid it but call it $5,000. So, and I don’t believe a private landlord would 
do this, but our staff recommended and we agreed that we would be, any unit that the resident wishes 
to leave behind and abandon has to sign the title over to us of course, and we would be responsible for 
that cost. So, we are essentially saving that resident $5,000 or more of demolition responsibility. So, 
the cash incentive was, we gave them notice, it was a six month notice, if they move before the end of 
May and only took one month of free rent, which is $400-$500 approximately, they could get $2,000 in 
cash to help them move. But if they stayed and took the free rent, that sort of, that cash goes away but 
they’re getting free rent, so but if you add the numbers up, the airport, it could be worth up to $8,000, 
almost $8,000 to these residents in rent concession and demolition responsibility that we’re assuming. 
So, we are executing that plan. Residents are taking us up. Mike’s last email showed over the last 
week, there were I think two more leases resolved. We are demolishing, we have demolished units this 
month as well. To our knowledge, roughly 32-33 units are in some state of either signing the title over 
or arranging to move. And so, each month, we are just simply, the residents are dealing with it. The 
other thing the staff did, which I did, again, we are a busy organization, we have an airport to run. We 
could have simply given notice, enforced the lease, collected rent, and enforced the removal 
obligation. But they also stepped up and said, ‘We can provide other services to these residents.’ And 
so, they networked with various social services and housing agencies and they had an onsite, (I don’t 
want to call it a fair because it sounds like it’s a happy situation), but they had an onsite networking 
opportunity where our staff arranged for, and it was mainly organized by the United Way. But they 
brought, and to our knowledge, 35-40 residents took advantage of that onsite networking opportunity to 
sign up for services and get information about housing opportunities. So, we are where we are. I mean, 
we have a failed trailer park. As we’ve been briefed repeatedly, the water lines have collapsed and are 
in need of replacement and repair. The storm water system has collapsed and is beyond repair and we 
have neither the authority nor the money to spend the millions of dollars necessary to bring this park 
up to code. I mean, I was in the commercial real estate business. So, investors make a fortune on 
mobile home parks. It’s a wonderful asset. I would love to have a profitable mobile home park that 
supports the airport mission but unfortunately, we don’t. We have a failed one and it will close and 
we’re in the process of doing that, and I think, I compliment the staff on coming up with a beyond our 
contractual obligation, beyond what we’re required to do by law, coming up with a compassionate plan 
to execute that closure. And they are providing both financial and non-financial assistance to these 
residents. As your budget packet brief reflected, it will cost us roughly $650,000 to close this park. So, 
that’s what’s going on. I know it’s not a happy situation. I think some of the media reporting has been, I 
won’t call it inaccurate, I just call it incomplete. And perhaps not balanced.”  

Peter Dujardin, reporter for the Daily News responded, “That’s why you need to talk to us.” 

Commissioner Joseph stated, “That’s my take and if I said anything inaccurate or incorrect, correct me 
now rather than later. But it reminds me that no good deed goes unpunished, particularly by the media 
at times. You’ve lived in this world.” 

Commissioner Scott replied, “Absolutely. And for the record, I’m not stating opposition to closing it. I 
am concerned about the way it was handled. Commissioner Kelly and I are PR and Marketing and we 
didn’t get a chance to PR or Market, so we, I believe that we should have been involved in any 
community events where we would have known before we had incomplete reporting of the citizen’s 



 
 

 220623 PAC Minutes  
 

concerned and how we move from there, because as I mentioned earlier, not only did it become a PAC 
problem, it became a City of Newport News problem. And that’s, you know, a lot of people are what 
happens and all of the miscues made it appear as though we are throwing these people on the street, 
when in essence, I’m sure that’s not what we intended to portray, so...” 

Commissioner Joseph thanked Commissioner Scott for her question and giving us a chance to 
address it. He then asked if there were any more comments. 

Commissioner Kelly said, “The big thing for me is it just has to be done. The numbers coming down 
that you’ve talked about, our budget is set hoping, and there is hope in the budget, that we may have 
to address in a few months on getting more service and getting more grants, but barring that, we’re 
going to keep losing millions per year pretty soon. And so, we can’t spend the money to fix the 
drainage so to me, that was the clinching thing. And could we have gotten ahead of the media better 
than we did? Probably, but this is a common problem. Their lawyer hasn’t answered us yet, right? Is 
that correct? As of yesterday. I didn’t see that mentioned in your data, Mr. Giardino.” 

Commissioner L. Smith stated, “I think Mr. Chairman, one point of clarification is, it’s not just a financial 
consideration for the PAC. From an infrastructure standpoint, some of these failed lines actually run 
under the mobile homes, so they would have to be relocated in order to correct the problem and fix the 
infrastructure. So, it goes beyond just a budgetary monetary issue, it’s almost an impossibility to do it 
without displacing the residents there regardless. So that for me was a big consideration was, it’s not 
just about money, it’s about we just can’t do it in a manner that doesn’t disrupt their lives.” 

Commissioner Kelly, “The drain issues, some of those things since this thing started, we’ve found you 
can’t move some of those trailers because they’re in such bad shape. You can’t move into another 
place because of the drainage, you can’t move the mobile offsite to another park, so it was a failing 
enterprise. The speed with which we did it and how we could work with the media could be 
addressed.” 

Commissioner Joseph asked if there was anything else for open session. There being none, he asked 
counsel Scott Seymour to read the language to take us into closed session. Mr. Seymour asked if we 
would be discussing anything regarding the disposition of real property, lease or otherwise. 
Commissioner Joseph said yes, real estate and air service. Mr. Giardino clarified we would be closing 
the session under exemptions A3 and A5.  

Mr. Seymour read the following, “At this point the Chair will accept a motion to move the 
commissioners of the Peninsula Airport Commission convene in closed session meaning pursuant to 
Virginia code section 2.2.3711 A3 for the discussion of consideration for the disposition of publicly held 
real property where the discussion in an open meeting would adversely affect the Commission’s 
bargaining position or negotiating strategy, and A5 for the discussion concerning a prospective 
business or industry or an expansion of an existing business or industry where no previous 
announcement has been made of the business’ or industry’s interest in locating or expanding it’s 
facilities in the community regarding the expansion of aviation services.” Mr. Seymour asked for a 
motion. Commissioner Kelly moved; Commissioner Scott seconded the motion. Voice vote by roll call: 
Mr. Joseph – Yes, Ms. L. Smith – Yes, Mr. Kelly – Yes, Ms. Scott – Yes, Ms. J. Smith – Yes. Motion 
passed.  

Closed session began at 9:03 a.m. 

Open session resumed at 9:46 a.m. 



 
 

 220623 PAC Minutes  
 

Mr. Seymour opened the session by certifying that only such business as identified was discussed in 
accordance with the Virginia code. A motion to reconvene was made by Commissioner Kelly and 
seconded by Commissioner Scott. Voice vote by roll call: Mr. Joseph – Yes, Ms. L. Smith – Yes, Mr. 
Kelly – Yes, Ms. Scott – Yes, Ms. J. Smith – Yes. Motion passed. 

Commissioner Joseph asked if there was any other business and welcomed Commissioner Jennifer 
Smith. He thanked everyone for being present and the meeting was adjourned at 9:48 a.m. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBITS



MARKETING UPDATE
June 2022



Vision/Mission/Brand

Vision
Our community’s first choice for air travel

Mission
Fast, easy, enjoyable travel to and from our community

Functional Promise
Get there faster and easier

Emotional Promise
Relax and enjoy your trip

Brand Personality
The brand feels authentically local and comfortable, while also being sophisticated enough to understand and service 
the most experienced global travelers.

The brand is knowledgeable and efficient, while also being approachable, friendly, fun, and caring.



Growth Approach

• Fill Seats
• Create branded awareness and bookings
• Target Load Factor >85% (% of seats sold)

• Get Seats
• Grow current routes
• New routes

• Fill Seats
• Existing routes
• New routes

Fill seats
85% LF

Get seats

Fill seats
85% LF



Results for American Airlines Q2 load factors 
rebounding even t 
reduced spending

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

40

50

60

70

80

90

Q1
2017

Q2
2017

Q3
2017

Q4
2017

Q1
2018

Q2
2018

Q3
2018

Q4
2018

Q1
2019

Q2
2019

Q3
2019

Q4
2019

Q1
2020

Q2
2020

Q3
2020

Q4
2020

Q1
2021

Q2
2021

Q3
2021

Q4
2021

Q1
2022

Q2
2022

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
Sp

en
di

ng

Lo
ad

 F
ac

to
r

Load Factors and Media Spending

Marketing Newport News Norfolk Richmond

$0.10

$0.15

$0.20

$0.25

Q1
2017

Q2
2017

Q3
2017

Q4
2017

Q1
2018

Q2
2018

Q3
2018

Q4
2018

Q1
2019

Q2
2019

Q3
2019

Q4
2019

Q1
2020

Q2
2020

Q3
2020

Q4
2020

Q1
2021

Q2
2021

Q3
2021

Q4
2021

Yield

Newport News Norfolk Richmond

Superior yields 
through 2021, but 

data trail by 4+ 
months



Marketing Review and Outlook

• 2021 – Year of start-up, new brand and the pandemic

• 2022 – Year of improved planning, management, and optimization
 Implemented planning and collaborative development tools
Assessed, optimized and aligned resources
• Reduced spending while maintaining load factor

• Modify digital advertising tactics
• Broaden media mix
• Improve organic social media

• Launch best-in-class digital analytics and improve marketing efficiency
• Learning very quickly

• Be ready for new service
• Launch plan discussions and investigation



Dashboard

Leisure Digital Ad Performance

https://datastudio.google.com/reporting/9dc7aa7d-9edb-4ca4-be10-adf4b911e9b4?s=r1LeppxsrJ0


Marketing Questions?



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCIALS 



YTD PROJECTED ANNUAL PRIOR YEAR
DESCRIPTION ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL

REVENUE
Airline Fees 43,810               658,156             672,032          97.9% 619,644              106.2%
Fixed Based Operators 58,965               602,078             593,311          101.5% 552,646              108.9%
Property Rental 108,970              1,143,917          1,149,785       99.5% 1,165,313           98.2%
Rental Cars 169,957              1,935,590          1,937,986       99.9% 1,948,834           99.3%
Parking Lot 66,240               848,348             853,512          99.4% 815,823              104.0%
Restaurant Income 25,173               399,645             411,056          97.2% 341,169              117.1%

TOTAL REVENUE 473,115              5,587,735          5,617,682       99.5% 5,443,429           102.7%

EXPENSES
Labor and Benefits 329,807              4,275,188          4,304,073       99.3% 4,294,874           99.5%
Marketing & Advertising 21,982               717,709             758,911          94.6% 647,857              110.8%
Office & Administration 174,748              816,627             813,317          100.4% 766,656              106.5%
Utilities 91,217               721,518             677,486          106.5% 876,325              82.3%
Repairs & Maintenance 80,805               628,126             596,975          105.2% 871,032              72.1%
Restaurant Expense 38,301               372,833             367,136          101.6% 361,674              103.1%
Bond Debt 18,325               192,543             190,052          101.3% 246,068              78.2%

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES 755,185              7,724,543          7,707,950       100.2% 8,064,486           95.8%

NET INCOME (282,070)            (2,136,808)         (2,090,268)      102.2% (2,621,057)         81.5%

OTHER ITEMS
Trailer Park -                         -                        -                      397,939              
Expense Subsidy 374,677              689,688             689,688          4,184,276           
Sale of Land -                         -                        -                      302,520              

NET AFTER OTHER 92,607               (1,447,120)         (1,400,580)      2,263,678           

Total Unrestricted Restricted

Cash 16,539,737         3,477,275          13,062,462      
Other Current Assets 379,030              
Fixed Assets (Net of Depreciation) 85,543,180         

TOTAL ASSETS 102,461,947       

Current Liabilities 1,232,781           
Long Term Notes Payable 13,732,240         

TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,965,021         

Net Capital Beginning 87,374,581         
Capital Contributions 29,738               
YTD Earnings Current Year 92,607               

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL 102,461,947       

PENINSULA AIRPORT COMMISSION
JULY 2022

OPERATING INCOME STATEMENT

BALANCE SHEET



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AIR SERVICE REPORT 



 
Monthly Report Summary 

July 2022 
 

• We served 13,702 passengers in June 2022 
o  Up by 983 from May 2022 

• Load factors: 
o 84.8% for American 

• Flight Ops (landings & take offs) 
o 5355 

Total Passengers: 

Jan: 10,538 

Feb:  11,864 

Mar:  16,810 

Apr:  15,896 

May:  14,435 

June:     15,797 

July:      17,738 

Aug:  

Sep:  

Oct:  

Nov:   

Dec:  

 

Total:   103,078 PAX 



Jul-22

Jul-22

0

15,044

7t21 -6t22

180,136

685

2022YTD
94,764

0

Jul-22
3,799

452

613

491

2022

TOTAL 'ts,o44 21,586 -30.3% 1oo.o% 100.0%

TOTAL 180,821 137 ,827 31 .20/o 100.0% 100.0%

TOTAL 94,764 62,764 39.8% 1oo.o% 1oo.o% 53,784

TOTAL s,355 s,584 59,556 45,278 31.5%

N EWPORT N EWS WI LLIAMS BU RG I NTE RNATIONAL AI RPORT
MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT

TOTAL PAX
MKT SHR

2022(enpl. + {sp1.;

American
Charter

YOY PAX
American
Charter

YTD PAX
American
Gharter

FLIGHT
OPS
GA
Air Garrier
Itinerant Mil
Local Mil

Jul-21 % CHG
MKT SHR

2021

99.0%

1.0%

MKT SHR
2021

98.8%

1.2%

MKT SHR
2021

98.6%

14%

YOY

% CHANGE

49.5%

12.2o/o

-7.8o/o

20.7%

Total

Seats Avail.

Total Seat
Available YTD

53,784

Total

Enpl & Depl Load Factor

21,375

211

136,146

1,681

66,826

938

Jul-21

3,851

639

605

489

-29.60/o

-100.0%

32.3o/o

-59.3%

41.8%
-100.0%

12 Months
To-Date

2022

38,686
6,867
6,537
7,466

100.0%

O.0o/o

SHR

99.6%

0.4%

MKT SHR
2022

100.0%

O.OVo

12 Months

To-Date

2021

25,882
6,1 18

7,091
6,187

17,738 15,044

zt2o-6t21 % CHG 2022

2021YTD % CHG



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION(S)



PENINSULA AIRPORT COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION REGARDING LEASES OF PRE-EXISTING AIRPORT FACILITIES 

August 25, 2022 

WHEREAS, the Peninsula Airport Commission (the "Commission") is a political 
subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, created pursuant to Chapter 22 of the Acts of the 
General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Virginia of 1946, as amended, and owns and operates 
Newport News- Williamsburg International Airport (the "Airport"); 

WHEREAS, the Commission is vested with the authority to make provisions for the 
needs of aviation, commerce, shipping, and travel in, to and around the Airport to promote and 
develop the Airport, and in the exercise of such power, to enter into leases of Airport property; 

WHEREAS, the Commission owns and operates leases and Commission Staff has 
prepared the form leases for use at the Airport, and such leases have been reviewed by the 
Commission; and 

WHEREAS, the Commissioners of the Peninsula Airport Commission desires to 

approve, execute, or extend such leases, from time to time, by granting authority to the 

Executive Director, 

WHEREAS, on December 5, 2020, the Commission authorized the Executive Director 
to enter into general aviation hangar leases for the Commission not exceeding a five (5) year 
term (including extensions) and at an annual rental rate not to exceed $40,000. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF THE PENINSULA AIRPORT COMMISSION THAT: 

The Executive Director is authorized to enter into any airport leases for the Commission that 

do not exceed a five (5) year term (including extensions) and at an annual rental rate that does 

not exceed $40,000 using such form leases with tenants of pre-existing Commission-owned 

facilities at the Airport. 

This resolution shall take effect immediately. 



:.:, ·,· Pe/lowing Approval of Finance Committee 

PENINSULA AIRPORT COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION A UTIIORIZING TIIE PURCHASE OF 
CERTAIN PARCELS OF REAL ESTATE 

August  25. 2020 

WHEREAS, the Peninsula Airport Commission (the "Commission") is a political 
subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, created pursuant to Chapter 22 of the Acts of the 
General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Virginia of 1946, as amended, and owns and operates 
Newport News - Williamsburg International Airport (the "Airport"); 

WHEREAS, the Commission is authorized to acquire within the territorial limits of the 
region for which it is formed, by purchase, lease, gift, condemnation or otherwise, whatever land 
as may be reasonably necessary for the purpose of establishing constructing, enlarging, 
maintaining and operating the Airport; 

WHEREAS, the Commission desires to acquire two parcels of real property (together, the 
"Real Estate"), located at 114 and 200 Oriana Road, Yorktown, Virginia, together with any 
buildings and structures thereon, containing approximately 0.55 acres and 0.43 acres, respectively, 
which parcels of Real Estate are identified in the Airport Property Map and Airport Layout Plan 
as "proposed acquisition" for Airport purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission desires to approve and authorize the Commission's 
purchase of the Real Estate; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE PENINSULA AIRPORT COMMISSION THAT: 

l. The Commission hereby finds that acquisition of the Real Estate, will enhance the 
Commission's ability to comply with applicable Federal Aviation Regulations
relating to obstacle clearance and will support important elements of the Airport
Master Plan (2014 Update) related to the realignment and relocation of Oriana
Road, obstruction removal, and the relocation of the Runway 2/20 Threshold.

2. The Commission approves and authorizes use of Commonwealth of Virginia
Aviation Trust Fund Airport Entitlement Funding and Local Airport Revenue to 
purchase the Real Estate at a price not to exceed appraised value, plus usual and
customary transaction costs, and expenses.

3. The Chair, Vice-Chair, and Executive Director are each authorized and directed to 
make and enter into any purchase agreements, contracts, deeds and instruments in

connection with the purchase of the Real Estate in order to consummate the
Commission's acquisition of same.

4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.



114 & 200 
Oriana Road
August 25, 2022



Big Picture

2



Big Picture

3



FAA Documents

• Airport Property Map • Airport Layout Plan

4



Summary

• Now is the time – this is our best opportunity

• Mitigates Encroachment

• Mitigates Obstacle Clearance 

• 80% State Entitlement Funding – Virginia Aviation Board (VAB) Voted Unanimously to Approve

• Consistent with Strategic Planning

5



Questions?


	220825 PAC Board Packet
	220825 PAC Board Packet
	220825 Land Acquisition PAC
	220825 PAC Board Packet
	220825 PAC Board Packet
	220825 PAC Board Packet
	220825 PAC Board Packet
	220825 PAC Board Packet
	220623 PAC Board Meeting Minutes
	220825 PAC Board Packet
	220825 DRAFT PAC Agenda
	220825 PAC Board Packet
	Peninsula Airport Commission Board of Commissioners Meeting Packet
	AGENDAS
	MINUTES
	EXHIBITS
	FINANCIALS
	AIR SERVICE REPORT



	Exhibit One Marketing Update 6 23 22
	Marketing Update
	Vision/Mission/Brand
	Growth Approach
	Slide Number 4
	Marketing Review and Outlook
	Slide Number 6
	Marketing Questions?


	FY 2023 FINANCIAL RESULTS 07-22 Report

	Lease resolution

	Land acquisition resolution


	Monthly activity report 7.2022

	Notes for Meeting May 2022



